

1/11 2

United States Attorneys Bulletin



*Published by Executive Office for United States Attorneys
Department of Justice, Washington, D.C.*

Vol. 22

March 8, 1974

No. 5

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE

TABLE OF CONTENTS

	<u>Page</u>
POINTS TO REMEMBER Airport Searches	137
ANTITRUST DIVISION SHERMAN ACT Court Imposes Sanctions in Civil and Criminal Contempt Proceedings	<u>United States & I.C.C. v The Greyhound Corp., et al.</u> 138
CIVIL DIVISION DISCHARGE OF FEDERAL EMPLOYEES Supreme Court Reverses Injunction Against Discharge of Proba- tionary Employee	<u>Sampson, Administrator, General Services Ad- ministration, et al. v. Murray</u> 140
FREEDOM OF INFORMATION ACT Supreme Court Holds That District Court Lacks Jurisdiction to Enjoin Proceedings of the Renegotiation Board Pending Disclosure of Documents Under the Freedom of Information Act	<u>Renegotiation Board v. Bannercraft Clothing, Co., Inc. et al.</u> 142
NATIONAL BANK ACT Ninth Circuit Sustains Controller's Decision Allowing a California National Bank to Open Another Branch in Washington	<u>Seattle Trust and Savings Bank, et al. v. The Bank of California, et al.</u> 143

LAND AND NATURAL RESOURCES

DIVISION

INDIANS

Definition of Non-Indian
Community Ruled Uncon-
stitutionally Vague;
Improper Delegation of
Authority to Indian
Tribes to Regulate
Introduction of Alcohol
in Indian Country

United States v. Martin
Dewalt Mazurie, et al. 144

ADMINISTRATIVE LAW

Judicial Review of

Secretary's Decision not
to Issue Dredge and Fill
Permits Under Section 10
of River and Harbor Act
of 1899.

DiVosta Rentals, Inc. v.
Emmet C. Lee, et al. 145

ENVIRONMENT

Federal-aid Highway Pro-
ject; Retroactive
Application of Nepa;
Cost of Abandoning
Project

Ecoss, et al. v. Volpe,
et al. 146

PUBLIC LANDS

LANDS EXCHANGES: ESTOPPEL
OF FEDERAL OFFICIALS

Van Wie, et ux. v.
Butz, et al. 146

TAX DIVISION

WAIVER OF RIGHT TO ENFORCE
SUMMONS (OR SUBPOENA)

United States and Carl K.
Roxen, Revenue Agent,
etc. v. Alvin I. Malnik,
Respondent (C.A. 5) 148

SEVERANCE OF ISSUES IN TAX
INJUNCTION SUITS

Taxpayer Seeking Injunction
Prohibiting Collection
of Tax Prior to Refund
Trial Must Establish
Irreparable Harm Before
Court will Consider
Taxpayer's Proof That
Government Cannot
Establish that Taxpayer
is Liable for Any of
the Claimed Taxes

Ernest W. White v. Thomas
A. Cardoza, District
Director of Internal
Revenue, United States,
et al. 150

AGREEMENTS TO SETTLE TAX
LIABILITIES

152

APPENDIX
FEDERAL RULES OF CRIMINAL PROCEDURE

RULE 6(c): The Grand Jury; Fore-
man and Deputy Foreman

United States v. Charles J.
Quinn, Jr. 153

RULE 6(g): The Grand Jury.
Discharge and Excuse.

In the Matter of Jack
Korman v. United States 154

RULE 16(a): Discovery and
Inspection. Defendant's
Statements; Reports of
Examinations and Tests;
Defendant's Grand Jury
Testimony

United States v. Stanley
Marks 155

RULE 16(b): Discovery and
Inspection. Other Books,
Papers, Documents, Tangible
Objects or Places

155

RULE 16(a): Discovery and
Inspection. Defendant's
Statements; Reports of
Examination and Tests;
Defendant's Grand Jury
Testimony

III

	<u>Page</u>
	<u>United States v. Philip Marshak</u> 156
RULE 16(b): Discovery and Inspection. Other Books, Papers, Documents, Tangible Objects or Places	156
RULE 16(a): Discovery and Inspection. Defendant's Statement; Reports of Examination and Tests; Defendant's Grand Jury Testimony	<u>United States v. Harvey Bertram Pollak</u> 157
RULE 16(g): Discovery and Inspection. Continuing Duty to Disclose; Failure to Comply	157
RULE 16(b): Discovery and Inspection. Other books, Papers, Documents, Tangible Objects or Places	<u>United States v. Philip Marshak</u> 158
RULE 16(b): Discovery and Inspection. Other Books, Papers, Documents, Tangible Objects or Places	<u>United States v. Charles J. Quinn, Jr.</u> 159
RULE 16(g): Discovery and Inspection. Continuing Duty to Disclose; Failure to Comply	<u>United States v. Harvey Bertram Pollack</u> 160
RULE 18: Place of Prosecution and Trial	<u>United States v. L. J. Luton (C.A. 5)</u> 161
LEGISLATIVE NOTES	L1

POINTS TO REMEMBERAirport Searches

Very recently the United States Supreme Court decided the case of United States v. Robinson, 42 U.S.L.W. 4055 (December 11, 1973), which holds that a full search of a person incident to a lawful custodial arrest based on probable cause is an exception to the search warrant requirement of the Fourth Amendment and is a reasonable search under that Amendment. In Robinson a full-custody arrest was made of the defendant for driving with a revoked license and then a full search was made of the defendant's person. It should be understood that Robinson is inapposite to the airport screening program because searches made incident thereto are not based on individualized probable cause resulting in an arrest as is true of the search in Robinson. Therefore, Robinson does not offer any legal support for the searches occurring as a result of the airport screening program, except in those instances where an individual is lawfully arrested for committing a crime while boarding an aircraft, such as a violation of 18 U.S.C. 35 (bomb hoax) 49 U.S.C. 1472(m) (hijack hoax), etc. In this regard the present preboard screening searches have been upheld under conditions indicating a voluntary consent on the part of the individual searched. Further, these preboard screening airport searches are executed with the minimal amount of personal intrusion.

Various United States Courts of Appeals have recently attempted to delineate the legitimate scope of airport searches. See United States Attorneys Bulletin, Vol. 21, No. 20, at 775 for synopsis of some of these decisions.

(Criminal Division)

ANTITRUST DIVISION
Assistant Attorney General Thomas E. Kauper

DISTRICT COURT

SHERMAN ACT

COURT IMPOSES SANCTIONS IN CIVIL AND CRIMINAL CONTEMPT PROCEEDINGS.

United States & I.C.C. v. The Greyhound Corporation, et al.
(69 C 1148, 71 CR 924; January 22, 1974; DJ 59-12-1600)

On January 22, 1974, Chief Judge Robson of the Northern District of Illinois issued a Memorandum Opinion and Order concerning the criminal and civil sanctions to be imposed upon defendants Greyhound lines, Inc. and Greyhound Corporation. The case arose out of a 1970 three-judge court order affirming and enforcing an I.C.C. order that Greyhound should cease discriminating against its small competitor, Mt. Hood Stages, Inc., and in particular should quote its connecting routes and schedules voluntarily and accurately, arrange good connections with it, and depict its routes and schedules accurately on maps and schedule forms. The Judgments Section of the Antitrust Division, acting in conjunction with the I.C.C., filed civil and criminal contempt actions in June of 1971, charging contempt of eight paragraphs of the ten paragraph order.

In June 1973, Judge Robson, sitting as the sole judge for a combined civil and criminal proceeding, issued a lengthy opinion holding Greyhound lines and its parent, Greyhound Corp., guilty of five counts of criminal and civil contempt. 363 F. Supp. 525. The Judge then issued a schedule for briefing and oral argument concerning criminal and civil sanctions.

Immediately after the finding of contempt, Greyhound instituted a substantial program of compliance, including the hiring of Pinkerton agents to police Greyhound terminals and to make sure the bus agents were quoting connecting service voluntarily and accurately. Greyhound also stipulated with the Government to the imposition of two additional paragraphs in the Court Order, one providing for visitation rights and the second requiring Greyhound to provide detailed compliance reports from itself and Pinkerton every six months for the next five years.

The complainant, Mt. Hood Stages, Inc., was allowed to intervene in the proceeding, and requested additional civil relief and damages for financial injury to it resulting from

the acts of contempt. The Government took the position that the additional civil relief was unnecessary, but that complainant should be entitled to those damages it could prove.

In regard to the issue of criminal contempt, Justice and I.C.C. suggested that a fine of \$1,500,000 would be appropriate, calculated at \$300 a day for each of five counts of contempt over 500 days. Greyhound argued that since they had attained reasonably good compliance after the contempt finding and since many of their acts of contempt were the result of mere negligence or narrow interpretations of the Order rather than direct defiance of the Court, a small or nominal fine would be the most that would be appropriate.

The Justice Department also requested that as part of the civil relief, Greyhound be required to reimburse the Justice Department for attorneys' fees expended in prosecution of the contempt action.

In a relatively brief Memorandum Opinion, Judge Robson held that a fine of \$500,000 on Greyhound Lines and \$100,000 on Greyhound Corporation was appropriate in light of the willful nature of the violation, the extent of injury to the public it caused, and the amount needed to deter corporations of Greyhound's size from feeling free to ignore or misinterpret Court orders.

The Judge concluded that no additional civil relief, except that stipulated, was necessary. He ruled that Mt. Hood Stages should not be awarded damages arising out of the contempt because Mt. Hood had already been awarded \$13 million in its own separate antitrust action against Greyhound for virtually the same conduct complained of in the contempt actions.

Lastly, the Judge ruled that the awarding of attorneys' fees is appropriate civil relief in the contempt action, and that the Government is as much entitled to such an award as any other successful party in a contempt proceeding. The Justice Department had estimated its attorneys' time as being worth approximately \$10,000 in terms of their salaries, but the Judge requested that this be presented in the form of an affidavit.

The staff believes that the \$500,000 fine on Greyhound Lines, Inc. is the largest corporate criminal contempt fine ever imposed.

On February 2, 1974, Greyhound filed a notice of appeal to the Seventh Circuit Court of Appeals from the decision and fine in the criminal contempt case.

Staff: Joel Davidow, Lubomyr Jachnycky (Antitrust Division).

CIVIL DIVISION
Acting Assistant Attorney General Irving Jaffe

SUPREME COURT

DISCHARGE OF FEDERAL EMPLOYEES

SUPREME COURT REVERSES INJUNCTION AGAINST DISCHARGE OF PROBATIONARY EMPLOYEE.

Sampson, Administrator, General Services Administration, et al. v. Murray (Sup. Ct., No. 72-403, decided February 19, 1974; D.J. 35-16-361).

Respondent, a probationary employee in the General Services Agency, was advised that she was to be discharged from her employment because of her unsatisfactory performance of her duties at the agency. However, during the course of discussions with her supervisors, respondent was shown a memorandum adverting to her activities while previously employed in the Defense Intelligence Agency. Contending that her discharge was predicated in part upon her previous employment, respondent requested that she be given an opportunity to respond in writing to her discharge, in accordance with Civil Service Commission regulations which afford a probationary employee the right to a written response when the discharge is based upon pre-employment conduct. GSA denied the request, and respondent appealed to the Civil Service Commission.

While her appeal was pending, respondent brought suit in the district court seeking an injunction against her discharge. She alleged that her separation from government service would cause her "irreparable injury" because it would result in a loss of income and would seriously impair her reputation. The district court ruled that it possessed jurisdiction to enter injunctive relief against her discharge pending the outcome of administrative proceedings, and that the grounds alleged by respondent justified a temporary restraining order against respondent's discharge. The court of appeals affirmed.

The Supreme Court reversed. The Court held that the power of the judiciary to order injunctive relief against discharges normally does not apply until the employee has exhausted his administrative remedies. In so holding, the Court distinguished Scripps-Howard Radio, Inc. v. FTC, 316 U.S. 4 (1972); FTC v. Dean Foods, Inc., 384 U.S. 597 (1966), relied upon by the court of appeals. The Court stated that, in those cases, jurisdiction

to order injunctive relief was based upon the court's power to stay final agency action, as distinguished from the instant case, where the Civil Service Commission had not yet rendered a final decision on respondent's appeal. Furthermore, the Court emphasized the traditional lack of authority of the federal courts to intervene in the government's internal affairs and the Congressional policy embodied in the Back Pay Act, 5 U.S.C. 5596, indicates that recoupment of loss of wages is the appropriate remedy if the employee ultimately prevails in his administrative appeal.

Accordingly, the Court held that the federal courts, as here, generally lack authority to enjoin discharges of government employees pending the exhaustion of administrative remedies. The court noted, however, that a "genuinely extraordinary situation" might afford a proper occasion for injunctive relief.

Staff: Robert S. Greenspan (Civil Division)

SUPREME COURTFREEDOM OF INFORMATION ACT

SUPREME COURT HOLDS THAT DISTRICT COURT LACKS JURISDICTION TO ENJOIN PROCEEDINGS OF THE RENEGOTIATION BOARD PENDING DISCLOSURE OF DOCUMENTS UNDER THE FREEDOM OF INFORMATION ACT.

Renegotiation Board v. Bannercraft Clothing Co., Inc. et al.
(Sup. Ct., No. 72-822, decided February 19, 1974; D.J. Nos. 145-0-429, 145-0-442, 145-0-438).

Bannercraft, and two other companies subject to the Renegotiation Act of 1951, were notified by the Renegotiation Board that they had realized excess profits on their defense contracts; renegotiation proceedings were instituted. Each company thereafter requested records from the Board under the Freedom of Information Act, 5 U.S.C. 552. When the Board refused to produce the requested documents, each company brought suit under the Information Act to compel disclosure. In each case the district court enjoined the Board from withholding the documents requested and from conducting any further renegotiation proceedings with the companies until the documents were produced. The Board appealed and the three appeals were consolidated. The court of appeals held that the district court had jurisdiction to enjoin agency action pending the disposition of an Information Act request, and that plaintiffs need exhaust only their administrative remedies under the Information Act, but not under the Renegotiation Act, prior to requesting injunctive relief against renegotiation proceedings. The Board petitioned for a writ of certiorari, which was granted.

The Supreme Court, after considering the nature of both the Freedom of Information Act and the Renegotiation Act, reversed. The Court held that in a renegotiation case the contractor must exhaust its administrative remedy under the Renegotiation Act, and when it fails to do so, may not seek judicial relief as a substitute remedy. The Court noted that such resort to the Information Act would interfere with the Congressionally mandated bargaining process between contractors and the Renegotiation Board,

and that the contractor, through de novo proceedings in the Court of Claims, has ample discovery procedures available to compel disclosure of agency documents. The court added that the Information Act should not be used as a discovery tool.

Staff: William Appler (formerly of the Civil Division)

COURTS OF APPEALS

NATIONAL BANK ACT

NINTH CIRCUIT SUSTAINS COMPTROLLER'S DECISION ALLOWING A CALIFORNIA NATIONAL BANK TO OPEN ANOTHER BRANCH IN WASHINGTON.

Seattle Trust and Savings Bank, et al. v. The Bank of California, et al. (C.A. 9, Nos. 72-2712 and 72-2750, decided January 30, 1974; D.J. 145-3-1169).

The Bank of California is one of only two national banks which has offices in more than one state. The National Bank Act permits national banks to establish branches "within the State in which [it] is situated" if the "statute law of the State in question" grants state banks the authority to establish similar branches. 12 U.S.C. 36(c). The Bank of California, whose corporate headquarters is in California, applied to the Comptroller for permission to establish a second branch in Seattle, Washington. The Washington banking statute authorizes branching by a state bank, inter alia, in "the city or town in which its principal place of business is located." R.C.W. 30.40.020. The Comptroller granted The Bank of California's application over the opposition of competing Washington state and national banks.

In this action by the competing banks against The Bank of California and the Comptroller, the district court granted summary judgment for both defendants, and the Ninth Circuit affirmed. The court of appeals first held that the Comptroller's determination of legal issues is subject to de novo review, although his administrative construction of the National Bank Act is entitled to great deference. Then the Ninth Circuit upheld the Comptroller's determination that the Bank of California is "situated" in Washington for purposes of 12 U.S.C. 36(c) and that its "principal place of business" for purposes of R.C.W. 30.40.020 is Seattle, the Bank's principal place of business within Washington.

Staff: Anthony J. Steinmeyer (Civil Division)

LAND AND NATURAL RESOURCES DIVISION
Assistant Attorney General Wallace H. Johnson

COURT OF APPEALS

INDIANS

DEFINITION OF NON-INDIAN COMMUNITY RULED UNCONSTITUTIONALLY VAGUE; IMPROPER DELEGATION OF AUTHORITY TO INDIAN TRIBES TO REGULATE INTRODUCTION OF ALCOHOL IN INDIAN COUNTRY.

United States v. Martin Dewalt Mazurie, et al. (C.A. 10, Nos. 73-1077, 73-1078, 73-1079, decided Nov. 6, 1973; D.J. 90-2-10-523)

The United States prosecuted the defendants, non-Indians, for introducing alcohol into Indian country, the Wind River Reservation in Wyoming, in violation of 18 U.S.C. sec. 1154. The defendants were convicted in a judge trial in the United States District Court for the District of Wyoming and took an appeal to the Tenth Circuit, which reversed the convictions and directed the district court to dismiss the informations.

The prosecution was initiated because the defendants did not possess a license for their tavern, the Blue Bull, from the Wind River Shoshone and Arapahoe Indian Tribes as required by the provisions of a tribal ordinance and 18 U.S.C. sec. 1161. The tavern is licensed by the State of Wyoming and located on fee patented land owned by the defendant non-Indians within the exterior boundaries of the Wind River Indian Reservation.

The court of appeals reversed the conviction, holding that 18 U.S.C. sec. 1154(c) was "fatally defective by reason of* * * indefinite and vague terminology," and that 18 U.S.C. sec. 1161 represents an improper delegation of authority to the Indian Tribes and is therefore invalid. The court also held that the Indian Tribes involved could not exercise any degree of governmental authority or sovereignty over individuals who do not belong to these tribes.

The court's opinion is not clear and quite vague in at least two respects. First, the court does not clearly state whether it has found the entirety of 18 U.S.C. 1154 invalid or merely subsection c. Second, the court does not state whether all of 18 U.S.C. sec. 1161 is invalid or merely that portion of the statute which requires the introduction of alcohol into Indian country to be in accordance with tribal ordinances. Finally, the court refused to reach the question of whether fee patented

land owned by non-Indians but within the exterior boundaries of an Indian reservation is Indian country.

Staff: Lawrence E. Shearer (Land and Natural Resources Division); United States Attorney Richard V. Thomas (D. Wyo.)

ADMINISTRATIVE LAW

JUDICIAL REVIEW OF SECRETARY'S DECISION NOT TO ISSUE DREDGE AND FILL PERMITS UNDER SECTION 10 OF RIVER AND HARBOR ACT OF 1899.

DiVosta Rentals, Inc. v. Emmett C. Lee, et al. (C.A. 5, No. 73-1893, decided Nov. 14, 1973; D.J. 90-5-1-6-10)

DiVosta Rentals brought suit seeking to compel the Secretary of the Army to issue a fill permit under Section 10 of the River and Harbor Act of 1899, 33 U.S.C. sec. 403, covering a small area of Lake Worth in Florida. The Secretary had denied the permit application after receiving objections to the proposed fill project from EPA, the Bureau of Sport Fisheries and Wildlife and the Bureau of Outdoor Recreation.

The district court found the Secretary's decision was improper and issued a mandatory injunction requiring him to issue the requested permit. The court held that the Secretary's decision was not based upon substantial evidence, violated the spirit of the National Environmental Policy Act of 1969, and that the Secretary had improperly considered the opinions, conclusions and recommendations of other federal agencies.

The Fifth Circuit reversed the holding that the district court had improperly applied the "substantial evidence" scope of review to the Secretary's decision and that the proper scope of review was the "arbitrary and capricious" standard set forth in the Administrative Procedure Act, 5 U.S.C. sec. 706(A)(2). The court often reviewed the Secretary's decision and found it was not "arbitrary and capricious, an abuse of discretion or otherwise not in accordance with law" and since the court determined that nothing that might happen in the district court on remand could establish that the Secretary's action was arbitrary and capricious, it remanded with instructions to dismiss

the suit. As a basis for its decision that the Secretary's decision was not arbitrary or capricious, the Fifth Circuit held that the Secretary can properly consider the objections of other federal agencies and that those objections "are sufficient to shield the Secretary's decision from attack under [the APA, 5 U.S.C.] sec. 706(2)(A).

Staff: Lawrence E. Shearer (Land and Natural Resources Division); Former Assistant United States Attorney Barbara E. Vicevich (S.D. Fla.)

ENVIRONMENT

FEDERAL-AID HIGHWAY PROJECT; RETROACTIVE APPLICATION OF NEPA; COST OF ABANDONING PROJECT.

Ecoc, et al. v. Volpe, et al. (C.A. 4, No. 73-1508, decided Nov. 5, 1973; D.J. 90-1-4-614)

In an action by environmentalists to enjoin construction of an 0.8-mile portion of a 9.2-mile federal-aid expressway project through Durham, North Carolina, for failure to file an impact statement pursuant to the National Environmental Policy Act, the court of appeals affirmed, per curiam, the judgment below, holding that this portion of the highway had reached the stage of completion (45%), that the costs of abandoning or altering it clearly outweigh any benefits derived from an injunction or applicable federal statutes pursuant to the principles announced in Arlington Coalition on Transportation v. Volpe, 458 F.2d 1323 (C.A. 4, 1972), and that NEPA should not be given retroactive application to a project commenced long before its enactment.

Staff: Glen R. Goodsell (Land and Natural Resources Division); Assistant United States Attorney J. Howard Cobble (M.D. N.C.)

PUBLIC LANDS

LAND EXCHANGES; ESTOPPEL OF FEDERAL OFFICIALS.

Van Wie, et ux. v. Butz, et al. (C.A. 8, No. 73-1355, decided Oct. 25, 1973; D.J. 90-1-4-522)

In a mandamus action to compel the Secretaries of Agriculture and Interior to issue a patent to 58 acres of selected forest

land in exchange for 160 acres of offered land pursuant to 16 U.S.C. sec. 485 in South Dakota, the court of appeals affirmed without opinion the judgment below which held that where the offeror had in good faith executed a deed to the United States of the offered land upon the conditional acceptance of a subordinate officer, the Secretary of Agriculture was estopped to deny the validity of that acceptance a year and a half later, and that the Secretary of the Interior be ordered to issue a patent for the selected forest land.

Staff: Glen R. Goodsell (Land and Natural Resources Division); Assistant United States Attorney Robert D. Hiaring (D. S.D.).

TAX DIVISION

Assistant Attorney General Scott P. Crampton

COURTS OF APPEALWAIVER OF RIGHT TO ENFORCE SUMMONS (OR SUBPOENA)

United States and Carl K. Roxen, Revenue Agent, etc.
v. Alvin I. Malnik, Respondent (C.A. 5, No. 72-3153)

On February 8, 1974, the Fifth Circuit affirmed the District Court's order refusing to enforce an Internal Revenue Summons (equivalent to a subpoena ad testificandum and duces tecum). The Fifth Circuit, however, reversed the District Court's holding that the taxpayer had properly invoked his Fifth Amendment privilege, and instead sustained the order on the ground that the Service had waived its right to enforce the summons.

The Service issued the summons to the taxpayer to have him appear at a time stated to answer questions and produce documents relating to his tax liability for stated years. At the time of the summons, the statute of limitations for criminal prosecution had expired and, indeed, for two of the tax years being investigated, the taxpayer had been acquitted of tax evasion. Prior to appearing pursuant to the summons, however, taxpayer's counsel advised the Service by telephone that taxpayer, if compelled to appear, would raise his Fifth Amendment privilege in refusing to answer all questions and produce the documents. Taxpayer's counsel asserted that the possibility of incrimination arose because the summonsed information could possibly conflict with certain representations to the Government and testimony given in the earlier criminal prosecution. Taxpayer's counsel requested the Service to forego having taxpayer appear pursuant to the summons, and the Service agreed, upon receiving taxpayer's statement in writing that he would neither answer questions nor produce the documents. Sometime thereafter, the government brought this action to enforce the summons.

The District Court held that the taxpayer had properly invoked his Fifth Amendment privilege in declining to comply with the summons. The Government appealed to the Fifth Circuit on the ground that the taxpayer had not made the required showing to invoke the Fifth Amendment. See Hoffman v. United States, 341 U.S. 479 (1951) and its progeny. Specifically, the Government urged that the taxpayer had neither shown (1) the nature and substance of his prior representations and testimony in the criminal prosecution, nor (2) how responding to the summons--either by answering questions which taxpayer had never

even heard or producing the summonsed documents--might tend to incriminate him. Instead, the Government urged, taxpayer had merely established the academic proposition that the Fifth Amendment may properly be raised when responding to the summons might show a conflict with earlier representations and testimony, which might constitute separate criminal offenses upon which the statute of limitations had not yet closed. The Fifth Circuit agreed with the Government that there had been no proper showing but nevertheless affirmed the District Court's order refusing enforcement of the summons. The Fifth Circuit construed the Service's agreement that taxpayer did not have to appear pursuant to the summons as a waiver of its right to enforce the summons.

The case thus stands for the proposition that the investigating authority should at least require the party summonsed (or subpoenaed) to appear pursuant to the summons (or subpoena) and invoke his Fifth Amendment privilege in a proper fashion. Then, the investigating authority can assess the refusal to answer or produce in a specific context and seek enforcement in the District Court as to only those items which appear warranted.

Staff: Crombie Garrett and John Townsend (Tax Division)

DISTRICT COURTSEVERANCE OF ISSUES IN TAX INJUNCTION SUITS

TAXPAYER SEEKING INJUNCTION PROHIBITING COLLECTION OF TAX PRIOR TO REFUND TRIAL MUST ESTABLISH IRREPARABLE HARM BEFORE COURT WILL CONSIDER TAXPAYER'S PROOF THAT GOVERNMENT CANNOT ESTABLISH THAT TAXPAYER IS LIABLE FOR ANY OF THE CLAIMED TAXES.

Ernest W. White v. Thomas A. Cardoza, District Director of Internal Revenue, United States, et al. (ED Mich.) February 7, 1974; No. Civ. 4-70528; D.J. 5-37-2948.

On September 18, 1973, Internal Revenue, pursuant to Section 6851 of the Internal Revenue Code, terminated taxpayer's 1973 tax year; at that time the Service seized over \$125,000 from various bank accounts owned by taxpayer. Subsequently, taxpayer sought an injunction requiring the return of the monies seized and an abatement of the assessment on the grounds that his business interests would be irreparably harmed without the use of cash and that the assessment was so arbitrary and capricious that the Government, under no version of the facts or view of the law, could prevail on it. If he could establish both of these tests then, under authority of Enochs v. Williams Packing Co., 370 U.S. 1, he could come within a judicially created exception to Section 7421(a) of the Internal Revenue Code which provides that no suit can be brought for the purpose of restraining an assessment or collection of a tax.

White was granted a hearing to prove his allegations; however, since the issue of "irreparable harm" was peculiarly within the taxpayer's knowledge, the Court, in effect, severed this issue and tried it first before giving any consideration to the issue concerning the arbitrariness of the tax assessment. This severance resulted in the case being dismissed upon the taxpayer's failing to prove "irreparable harm", without the Court or the parties ever reaching the second issue concerning the arbitrariness or capriciousness of the tax assessment.

The benefits of such a bifurcated hearing are as follows: Frequently in termination situations the taxpayer will later be indicted for a gambling or narcotics violation. If he is allowed to contest the Government's assessment in an Enochs-type hearing, he may be able to obtain discovery of the Government's evidence against him which, of course, he otherwise could not do until a criminal case or a tax refund case was pending. Secondly, since taxpayers in the past have usually not been able to prove irreparable harm, there is a considerable savings of time and Government work load. Finally, the fact that an assessment may appear to be somewhat arbitrary in certain instances will not affect the Court's decision on irreparable harm.

Staff: Jeffrey D. Snow (Tax Division)

TAX DIVISION

Assistant Attorney General Scott P. Crampton

AGREEMENTS TO SETTLE TAX LIABILITIES

It has come to the attention of the Department that, in connection with a recent prosecution as to a matter not involving federal income taxes, an agreement was entered into with the accused with respect to civil liability for income taxes and penalties.

Such an agreement was, of course, in disregard of clear and long-settled Department policy and procedure. All United States Attorneys are reminded that no agreement as to civil income tax liabilities or penalties (such as for fraud, negligence, etc.) is to be made in connection with any prosecution without prior approval by the Tax Division of the Department. (See United States Attorneys' Manual, Title IV ("TAX DIVISION"), pp. 7, 58, 61, and Title II ("CRIMINAL DIVISION"), pp. 80-81)